
 

MINUTES 

CITY OF ST. CHARLES  

TREE COMMISSION MEETING 

RALPH GRATHOFF, CHAIRMAN 

July 13, 2017 
 

Members Present: Chair. Ralph Grathoff, Kathy Brens, Jon Duerr, Suzi Myers, Pam Otto, Caroline Wilfong, Ron 

Ziegler 

 

Members Absent: Valerie Blaine, Raymond Hauser  

 

Others Present: Chris Adesso, Jeremy Craft, Marcelline D’Argento, Yvette Policastro   

 

Visitors Present: Loren Nagy    

 

1. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 

The meeting was convened by Chair. Grathoff at 7:05  p.m.  

 

2. Introduction of Visitors, Comments and Concerns 
Mr. Nagy expressed concern regarding mulch needed around City parkway trees and provided example 

photos of the trees. Mr. Craft explained that in accordance with the City’s Urban Forestry Management 

Plan (“UFMP”) City crews are currently mulching all parkway trees [see 4.A. below].   

 

Comm. Brens expressed her appreciation for the City’s prompt response for the removal of a large tree 

branch that fell in a recent storm. Comm. Brens also reported there is a private planting/bush obstructing 

the traffic view on the southwest corner of 3rd Avenue and Illinois Avenue. Mr. Craft will address this 

issue.   

 

3. Minutes Review and Approval   

Motion to approve and place into the public record the minutes of the May 11, 2017 Tree Commission 

meeting. Motion by Comm. Brens, second by Comm. Duerr to approve the minutes. Voice vote: 

unanimous; nays – none. Motion carried at 7:13 p.m.   

 

4. Old Business  
A. Mr. Craft updated the Commission regarding placement of mulch around all City parkway trees 

pursuant to the UFMP. The goal is to have mulching completed within three to five years.  

 

B. Mr. Craft reported the arbor team had been focusing on downtown beautification and landscape work 

in preparation for the visit by the America in Bloom (“AIB”) judges. On Friday, July 14, 2017, their 

focus will return to trees.  

 

C. Mr. Craft informed the Commission that contracted services for tree removals had been awarded to 

Skyline Tree Service, Inc. and DeMar Tree Service. With the reduction of the Ash tree population due 

to the Emerald Ash Borer (“EAB”) infestation, Chair. Grathoff asked if the City was still removing 

many trees. Mr. Craft explained there are a number of old Norway Maples and Crimson King Maples 

that require removal. 

 

D. Mr. Craft reported on 2017 fall planting. The City is selecting fifteen different species for planting, and 

approximately two hundred (200) trees will be planted this fall. Chair. Grathoff verified that the City 

does not intend to plant many Maple trees due to an over-population of these trees already in the 

parkways.  Mr. Crafted confirmed.  

 

5. New Business 

Comm. Duerr requested the status of the Tree Commission’s transition to a Natural Resources Commission 

(“NRC”). Mr. Adesso reported there is no change in the status of this transition as staff will need additional 

time to work on revisions to City Code. Chair. Grathoff reiterated the NRC will have eleven members with 



Tree Commission 

July 13, 2017 

Page 2 
 

its primary focus continuing to be maintaining the City’s designation as a Tree City USA community and 

other tree-related activities. Mr. Adesso added the NRC will continue the Tree Commission’s role as an 

advisory body to the City’s Public Works Department, unless the NRC is requested by the City’s 

Government Services Committee to expand its role with regard to a specific topic or action.  Chair. 

Grathoff requested input from the Commissioners regarding key initiatives and possibly increasing the 

frequency of meetings. Comm. Otto suggested more frequent meetings might be necessary because the 

NRC would be addressing a greater number of topics. Comm. Myers agreed monthly meetings would be 

best. Mr. Nagy commented more frequent meetings would facilitate progress, for example, if a topic was 

introduced, then researched, then reported the next month. Mr. Adesso noted the AIB judges asked if the 

Tree Commission’s transition to a NRC was still under consideration. Comm. Myers commented the City 

of Geneva has a NRC that conducts open meetings. Mr. Adesso explained the Geneva NRC is not 

sanctioned by the City of Geneva, and is one hundred percent volunteer based and self-sustaining.  

 

Chair. Grathoff asked if AIB has a sustainability focus. Comm. Otto explained AIB has different award 

evaluation criteria including “environmental efforts.” Comm. Otto noted that some businesses have become 

involved with AIB including Clarke on South Tyler Road. Clarke has completed several environmental 

related initiatives including the installation of a solar array, an electric car charging station and employee 

gardens where produce is grown to share and to take home; cooking classes are also offered. Additionally, 

Clarke’s facility produces almost zero waste.  

 

Chair. Grathoff inquired about the native species planted around the pond / basin by the Jewel store on the 

east side of the City. Mr. Adesso explained all the plantings are native, and this was the City’s first 

conversion from landscape to native plantings.  Kane County now requires native species are planted for all 

future projects. Mr. Adesso explained the basin was severely eroded, and turf was replaced with native 

plantings, some rock and a vegetative log system.   

 

Comm. Otto reported a honeybee ordinance was passed by the City Council. The ordinance imposes a two 

hive limit per residence, and provides protection for beekeepers.  

 

6. Committee Reports 

A. Education Committee  
Comm. Myers shared several newspaper articles and materials regarding tree-related topics including 

“Local activists discuss methods of saving trees” and “Sound off” [copies of the articles/materials are 

included with these minutes]. 

 

B. Langum Park Clean-Up 
Comm. Otto stated she will have a report on the clean-up of Langum Park in October or November. 

Comm. Brens suggested the possibility of involving community service persons in the clean-up effort. 

Comm. Wilfong asked about the best time for woods clean up. Comm. Otto responded that late fall or 

early winter is best because herbaceous plants are dormant, trees are not actively growing. Also poison 

ivy is currently growing in Langum Park woods. Comm. Otto explained the clean-up work needed 

includes trail chipping and removal of black cherry to free up century Oak trees; plant rescue could be 

done in the spring.  

 



Tree Commission 

July 13, 2017 

Page 3 
 
7.      Communications - Approval of Public Services Division Tree Activity Reports May and June 2017 

Motion by Comm. Myers to approve the above-referenced reports and place into the public record, second 

by Comm. Brens. Voice vote: unanimous; nays – none. Motion carried at 7:45 p.m.  

 

8. Additional Items  

A. Commissioners  

Mr. Nagy informed the Commission about an Illinois Landscape Contractors Association event at the 

Chicago Botanic Garden in October regarding Building Sustainable Landscapes.  

 

Comm. Wilfong suggested AIB could be promoted during the City’s annual Arbor Day celebration 

with the goal of participation by school children, boy/girl scouts and parent teacher organizations 

(PTOs). Comm. Otto noted AIB promotes community engagement. This is the City’s third year 

participating in AIB, and each year there is increased participation.  Comm. Myers suggested getting 

garden shops involved early in the season to promote AIB and the types of flowers/plants chosen by 

AIB for the year. The stores could order more of the featured flowers and post signs to support AIB. 

Comm. Brens suggested using the Arcada marquee to announce and display AIB information.  Mr. 

Nagy suggested that both sun and shade flower varieties be offered.  

 

B. City Staff  
Mr. Adesso noted the community’s support of AIB and thought some of the ideas could also be 

implemented for Arbor Day. For example, children from St. Charles’ schools created many red 

geranium pictures that were displayed in storefront windows on Main Street; perhaps artwork/pictures 

for Arbor Day 2018 could be similarly displayed in the windows; and possibly the Arcada theater 

marquee could announce Arbor Day.  

 

C. Visitors  

 None  

 

9. Adjournment 

Motion by Comm. Myers to adjourn the meeting, second by Comm. Ziegler. Voice vote:  unanimous; nays 

– none. Motion carried at 7:57 p.m. 














	m07-13-17
	2180_001

